

# **MINUTES**

# CHILDREN, SPORTS AND LEISURE POLICY & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 9 FEBRUARY 2015 MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Minutes of a meeting of the **Children, Sports and Leisure Policy & Scrutiny Committee** held on Monday 9 February 2015 at 7pm at Westminster City Hall, 64 Victoria Street, London SW1E 6QP.

**Members Present:** Councillors Brian Connell (Chairman), Iain Bott, Ruth Bush, Paul Church, Nick Evans, Barbara Grahame, Robert Rigby and Karen Scarborough.

Co-opted Members: Smita Bora.

**Also present:** Councillor Steve Summers (Cabinet Member for Sports, Leisure and Open Spaces).

**Apologies for Absence:** Annie Ee, Darren Guttridge, Brenda Morrison, Aki Turan and Louise McCullough.

### 1. MEMBERSHIP

- 1.1 It was noted that Councillor Karen Scarborough had replaced Councillor Richard Beddoe and that Councillor Ruth Bush had replaced Councillor Papya Qureshi.
- 1.2 The Chairman welcomed Steve Summers (Cabinet Member for Sports, Leisure and Open Spaces) to the meeting.
- 1.3 The Chairman also welcomed Chris Lloyd, Communities Development Manager (Libraries), who was attending the meeting to take part in the Review of the Westminster Volunteering Services discussion.
- 1.4 The Chairman advised that Councillor Danny Chalkley (Cabinet Member for Children and Young People) would not be attending the meeting. Any questions that Members had regarding his portfolio would be placed on the Committee's Action Tracker.

#### 2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

2.1 No further declarations of interests in respect of items to be discussed were made, other than those noted in the circulated schedule.

#### 3. MINUTES

3.1 **RESOLVED:** That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 January 2015 were approved for signature by the Chairman as a true and correct record of the proceedings subject to the following matter arising that Councillor Ian Bott wished to record his apology for his absence at the meeting.

# 4. ACTION AND RECOMMENDATIONTRACKERS

- 4.1 Councillor Bush advised that as Chair of the Westminster Faith Exchange she was happy for the Council to ask the Faith Exchange to communicate useful information to local residents.
- 4.2 **RESOLVED:** That the Action and Recommendation Trackers be noted.

# 5. QUESTION AND ANSWER SESSION: CABINET MEMBER FOR SPORTS, LEISURE AND OPEN SPACES

- 5.1 The Committee received an update from the Cabinet Member who responded to questions relating to:
  - the new location and decant of the Paddington Children's Library.
  - the temporary location of the Marylebone Library.
  - the improvements made to Broadly Street Gardens.
  - the refurbishment of the lift at the Pimlico Library.
  - the location of public realm and art work in open spaces in Soho.
  - the availability of green open play space in the Marylebone Street Ward.
  - Westminster Advice Service Partnership.
  - the public consultation of Tamplin Mews Gardens.
  - the London Youth Games.
  - the success of the ActiveWestminster Awards, the opportunities available to young people through the MCC Lords School Offer and the Launch event in early summer 2015.

#### 5.2 **ACTIONS**:

1. That further updates be sent to the Committee regarding Paddington Children's Library, Marylebone Library and Broadly Street Gardens.

- 2. That a briefing note be sent to the Committee on the work carried out by the Westminster Advice Service and their partner organisations.
- 3. That all Westminster's secondary schools be invited to attend the MCC Lords School Offer Launch event in Summer 2015.
- 4. That an item reviewing Sport in Westminster Schools be added to the Work Programme.

# 6. QUESTION AND ANSWER SESSION: CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE

6.1 The Committee received a written update from the Cabinet Member which covered current and forthcoming issues in his Portfolio.

#### 6.2 **ACTIONS**

- 1. That a briefing note, and if necessary a confidential briefing note, be sent to the Committee updating them on the position at George Elliot Primary School.
- 2. That a briefing note be sent to the Committee to include information on:
  - a) Paragraph 1.1: the number of children in the borough who were granted at least one of their top three preferences for schools in previous years.
  - b) Paragraph 1.4: the reduction in adoption and foster care placements.
  - c) <u>Paragraph 1.14:</u> the details and impact of European Nationals adolescents arriving in the UK alone.
  - d) Paragraph 1.18: how the target figure of 30 families had been identified in paragraph 1.18.
  - e) the Council's work on reducing childhood obesity.
  - f) private fostering arrangements within Westminster.
- 3. That all future briefing notes include table formatted data for the past five years where applicable.
- 4. That the Scrutiny Officer undertakes some research into the numbers of children being informally fostered by extended family members/family friends and the impact this has on the children, schools and Council.

#### 7. REVIEW OF WESTMINSTER VOLUNTEERING SERVICES

- 7.1 The Committee received a report on the design and implementation of the Westminster Volunteering Brokerage Service.
- 7.2 The Committee welcomed Councillor Steve Summers and Callum Whittaker, Policy Officer, who discussed with the Committee the new Team Westminster Volunteering Strategy which would provide a host of new services that would contribute to the delivery of the core Better City, Better Lives commitment to increase the number of people who volunteer in the city.
- 7.3 The Committee welcomed Chris Lloyd, Communities Development Manager (Libraries), who discussed with the Committee how the library service used volunteers as part of their service delivery. Chris explained that volunteers added value to the work being carried out by the library staff and in return benefited from training, work experience and personal gain and development. He advised that volunteers were from all age groups and community backgrounds, although there were only a small number of teenage volunteers.
- 7.4 The following key themes emerged from the Committee's discussion:
  - the difficulty of measuring the monetary value of volunteering to services and the community.
  - the need to remind people that the Volunteering Strategy was introduced not to replace people in paid employment but to encourage people to volunteer because of the positive effect volunteering could have on an individual and the community.
  - the importance of raising the profile of volunteering by publicising volunteering opportunities to Further Education Colleges and new arrivals to the City and by actively promoting awareness of volunteering in the City using market stalls, office foyers, youth clubs and the Lord Mayor's Parlour.
  - the importance of developing Apps and on-line portals to encourage volunteering participation to 'busy' people so that they could have the opportunity to volunteer for 'one off projects'.
  - the importance of targeting secondary schools and youth groups to inform teenagers of the benefits of volunteering to themselves and their community and the importance of the time credit service to young people and new volunteers even if established volunteers or older people did not feel it was necessary.
  - the need to make use of existing resources such as the Westminster

Guides and how best to raise their profile and make them more accessible. The Committee noted that whilst Westminster was increasing their investment in volunteering many other London Authorities were reducing their budget.

- the need for organisations to have a proper recruitment process, work programme and training schedule in place for their volunteers so that they feel appreciated and part of the workplace.
- the need for professionally paid staff to continue to be responsible for the Council's core legal statutory obligations such as in the care industry
- 7.5 The Chairman thanked everyone who had given up their time to attend the meeting and contribute to the discussion.
- 7.6 **RESOLVED:** That the following recommendations be reported to the Cabinet Member for Sports, Leisure and Open Spaces for consideration for developing his Volunteering Strategy:
  - 1. That the Committee welcomed the new Team Westminster Volunteering Strategy and acknowledged and recognised the wide network of volunteers working within the community. The Committee fully supported building on the strengths of existing volunteering programmes and increasing participation levels by commissioning a host of new services that support volunteering in Westminster.
  - 2. That the Council develop and use appropriate and innovative technology such as on-line portals and Apps to encourage increased volunteering participation particularly where time is a restriction to people. This would enable 'busy' people to volunteer for 'one off projects' that were time limited.
  - 3. That the Council, as an employer and commissioner, encourages volunteering through publicising the opportunities available to those who study (Further Educational Colleges), work and arrive in the City. The Committee endorsed using market stalls and the Lord Mayors' Parlour, where appropriate to do so, to promote awareness of volunteering in the City.
  - 4. That the Council target secondary schools and youth groups to inform teenagers of the benefits of volunteering to themselves and their community and to encourage young people to adopt volunteering as a life style choice.
  - 5. That the Committee encouraged the exploitation of volunteering for any opportunity where volunteering would be appropriate there were no 'no go' areas

6. That great care should be taken around activities where WCC had a legal duty of responsibility to maintain standards and not use volunteering purely as a way to reduce costs in times of financial restraint.

# 8. STRTEGY FOR THE NEW LEISURE FACILITIES MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

- 8.1 The Committee received a report outlining the planned strategy relating to the reprocurement of the Council's sports and leisure facilities contract in the summer 2016. The Committee heard that the contract was performing well and key performance indicators were positive. The Committee noted that the contract generated a net financial surplus to the Council each year which provided funding for wider sports development activities.
- 8.2 The Chairman welcomed Richard Barker, Director of Sports, Leisure and Open Spaces, who discussed with the Committee that the sports and leisure management contract made a positive contribution to a variety of Council and partner outcomes including 'Better City, Better Lives, the Public Health Outcomes Framework, particular 'Utilisation of green space for exercise/health reasons' and the 'Proportion of physical active and inactive adults indicators', the Volunteering Strategy and engagement of schools utilising the facilities for coaching and PE & School Sport.
- 8.3 The following key themes emerged from the Committee's discussion:
  - the new contract would improve financial return to the Council, provide capital investment for improved facilities and encourage the market to come back with solutions regarding outreach work to inactive groups.
  - the importance of outreach work and the promotion of everyday activities to the inactive and elderly population by finding venues to hold sport and leisure activities nearer to their homes/communities.
  - the possibility of including Key Performance Indicators in the new contract to encourage inactive residents to participate in sport for public health benefits.
  - the need for the new contractor to be committed to equal opportunities and be mindful of cultural community groups in Westminster.
  - the need to note that the new contract did not cover the whole sports and leisure offer to Westminster residents.
  - the importance of looking at other large procurement contracts to see if any lessons had been learnt when going through the process.

8.4 The Committee congratulated Westminster City Council's Sports and Leisure Unit in coming up with creative solutions to ensure their continued success and on the excellent variety of sports and leisure facilities available in Westminster.

# 8.5 **ACTIONS**

- 1. That a briefing note be sent on how the income of £900,000 was utilised by the Council through different sports and leisure projects.
- 2. That a briefing note be sent to the committee highlighting the wider work of the Sports and Leisure Unit (not just the facilities contract)

#### 8.6 **RESOLVED**:

- That the Committee acknowledged that the procurement process was on track to commence in February 2015 and that the new contract would improve financial return to the Council, provide capital investment for improved facilities and encourage the market to develop solutions for outreach work.
- 2. That the contract should include key performance indicators to encourage the new contractor to promote everyday activities to the inactive and elderly population (including by finding venues to hold sport and leisure activities nearer to their homes/communities).
- That consideration should be given to some elements of payment by results in the contract when achieving greater participation by low participation groups.
- 4. That the Sports and Leisure Unit continue to develop strong links with the Voluntary Sector, the NHS and schools in order to promote participation in sport and well-being in the community.
- 5. That the new contractor be committed to equal opportunities and be mindful of cultural community groups in Westminster.
- That the Committee be kept updated on the procurement process of the new contract

#### 9. CHILDREN AND FAMILIES OF SERVICE PERSONNEL

- 9.1 The Committee received an update on the needs of children of Service Personnel
- 9.2 **RESOLVED:** That the Committee receive an annual update on the needs of children of Service Personnel.

#### 10. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

- 10.1 The Committee agreed that it would consider the School Organisation Strategy and The new Sport and Physical Activity Strategy for Westminster at its next meeting.
- 10.2 The Committee agreed that it would hold additional meeting on Tuesday 21 April.
- 10.3 The Chairman advised that he would send a note inviting members to participate in a Task Group on reviewing sport in schools.

#### 10.4 **RESOLVED**:

- 1. That an additional Children, Sports and Leisure Policy and Scrutiny Committee be held on Tuesday 21 April.
- 2. That a note be sent by the Chairman inviting Members to participate in a Task Group reviewing sport in schools.
- 3. That the Committee receive an annual update on the needs of children of Service Personnel. (see paragraph 9.2).
- **11. UPDATE ON SAFEGUARDING ISSUES** (verbal update see agenda item 9)
- 11.1 **Resolved:** The Committee noted that there was nothing to report.

#### 12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

12.1 The Chairman gave details of his visit with Councillor Ian Adams and Councillor Karen Scarborough to the Policy and Scrutiny Team in the Houses of Parliament.

## 13. TERMINATION OF MEETING

13 .1 The meeting ended at 21.25.

CHAIRMAN	 DATE